Public Document Pack
__________________________________________________________________

Summons and Agenda for the

Council Meeting
to be held on

Tuesday, 17 May 2022
at

4.00 pm

Mission Statement “Making Selby a Great Place”

To:

All District Councillors

cc:

Chief Officers

You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the Council to be held in the Council
Chamber - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road, Selby, YO8 9FT on TUESDAY, 17 MAY
2022 starting at 4.00 pm. The Agenda for the meeting is set out below.

Janet Waggott
Chief Executive

Recording is allowed at Council, committee and sub-committee meetings which are
open to the public, subject to:- (i) the recording being conducted under the direction
of the Chairman of the meeting; and (ii) compliance with the Council’s protocol on
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings, a copy of which is available on
request. Anyone wishing to record must contact, prior to the start of the meeting,
Democratic Services via democraticservices@selby.gov.uk - any recording must be
clearly visible to anyone at the meeting and be non-disruptive.

AGENDA
Opening Prayers.
1.

Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence.

2.

Disclosures of Interest
A copy of the Register of Interest for each Selby District Councillor is available
for inspection at www.selby.gov.uk.
Councillors should declare to the meeting any disclosable pecuniary interest in
any item of business on this agenda which is not already entered in their
Register of Interests.
Councillors should leave the meeting and take no part in the consideration,
discussion or vote on any matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary
interest.
Councillors should also declare any other interests. Having made the
declaration, provided the other interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest,
the Councillor may stay in the meeting, speak and vote on that item of
business.
If in doubt, Councillors are advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer.

3.

Election of Chairman
a)

Nominations
To receive nominations for the election of Chairman of the Council for
the 2022/2023 Municipal Year.

b)

Retiring Chairman’s Valedictory Address
The retiring Chairman will be invited to give his valedictory address.
The retiring Chairman will be presented with a gift and Past Chairman’s
Badge.
Expressions of appreciation of the work of the retiring Chairman
may be made from Members at this point in the proceedings.

c)

Announcement of Chairman’s Consort
The Chairman of the Council will announce who their Consort will
be for their year in office. The retiring Chairman’s Consort will be
presented with a gift.

d)

Newly Elected Chairman’s Address
The newly elected Chairman will address the meeting.

4.

Election of Vice Chairman
a)

Nominations
To receive nominations for the election of Vice Chairman of the
Council for the 2022-23 Municipal Year.

b)

Announcement of Vice Chairman’s Consort
The Vice Chairman of the Council will announce who their Consort
will be for their year in office.

5.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 8)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held
on 19 April 2022.

6.

Announcements and Communications
The Chairman or the Chief Executive will deal with any communications which
need to be reported to the Council.

7.

The Leader's Report on the Exercise of Executive Functions (C/22/1)
(Pages 9 - 26)
To receive a report from the Leader of the Council setting out information
regarding the discharge of executive functions for the year ahead.

8.

Recalculation of Political Proportionality of the Council and
Appointments to the Committees of the Council for the 2022/23
Municipal Year (C/22/2) (Pages 27 - 30)
To note the changes to the membership of political groups on the Council and
the subsequent recalculation of political proportionality, and approve the group
nominations for the appointment of Councillors to Committees as outlined at
Appendix A for the 2022-23 municipal year.
Appendix A to follow.

9.

Council Appointments to Outside Bodies 2022-23 (C/22/3) (Pages 31 - 34)
To make the Council’s appointments to outside bodies for the 2022-23
municipal year, and authorise those appointed to act on behalf of the Council
in accordance with the legal and constitutional requirements of both the
Council and the outside body.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Minutes
Council
Venue:
Date:
Time:

Council Chamber - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road, Selby,
YO8 9FT
Tuesday, 19 April 2022
6.00 pm

Present:

Councillor J Duggan in the Chair
Councillors D Mackay, K Arthur, D Brook, D Buckle,
J Cattanach, I Chilvers (Vice-Chair), J Chilvers, S Duckett,
K Ellis, T Grogan, M Jordan, A Lee, C Lunn, J Mackman,
J McCartney, M McCartney, R Musgrave, W Nichols,
R Packham, C Pearson, N Reader, C Richardson, S ShawWright, R Sweeting, M Topping and Ashton

Officers Present:

Janet Waggott, Chief Executive, Karen Iveson, Chief
Finance Officer (remotely), Alison Hartley, Solicitor to the
Council, Dave Caulfield, Director of Economic Regeneration
and Place, Suzan Harrington, Director of Corporate
Services
and
Commissioning,
Victoria
Foreman,
Democratic Services Officer

Press:
Public:

None
None

60

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Crane, K Franks, J
Shaw-Wright and P Welch.

61

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
Councillor Arthur declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 – ‘Reports
from the Executive’ , specifically to the mention of the Selby Gateway Project
in Councillor Buckle’s report, as he was employed by Network Rail.

62

MINUTES
The Council considered the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 24
February 2022.
Members were informed that there were two proposed amendments; firstly,
Council - Minutes
Page
1 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

the wording of the second resolution at minute number 48, relating to the Low
Carbon Strategy item, should be amended as follows:
‘To support and select the first option of offsetting scope 1 and 2
emissions with regards to carbon offsetting from 2018 to 2023 as
outlined in section 4.2.’
Secondly, that the attendance details for the meeting mistakenly omitted
Councillor G Ashton, who had been present. Councillor Ashton would be
added to the amended version.
The two amendments were proposed, seconded and a vote taken.
RESOLVED:
To approve the minutes of the Council meeting held on
Tuesday 24 February 2022 for signing by the Chairman,
subject to the amendments detailed above.
63

COMMUNICATIONS
There were no communications.

64

ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no announcements.

65

PETITIONS
There were no petitions.

66

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
There were no public questions.

67

COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS
There were no Councillors’ questions.

68

REPORTS FROM THE EXECUTIVE
Councillor Mark Crane, Leader of the Council – presented by Councillor
Richard Musgrave, Deputy Leader, in Councillor Crane’s absence
The Deputy Leader presented the Leader’s update on the work he had
undertaken recently, as outlined in the report.
The Leader of the Opposition asked for further clarification on the section
about Devolution. The Deputy Leader explained that the proposals had been
agreed by the Executive in August 2020 and the other Councils in the area
around the same time. An update from the LEP would be provided soon and a
Council - Minutes
Page
2 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

further meeting held after the elections.
Members asked for more information so that were also aware of what was
being proposed. The Deputy Leader stated that the Executive report in
question was a public document and could be viewed on the Council’s
website.
The Member for Tadcaster thanked the Leader for approval of the emergency
grant to assist with the recent flooding in the town; the Deputy Leader would
pass on his thanks.
Members asked for an update on the Afghan refugee scheme so that the
refugees could be made welcome. The Deputy Leader confirmed that this
information would be shared with Members.
Councillor Richard Musgrave, Deputy Leader and Lead Executive Member or
Place Shaping
The Deputy Leader gave an overview of his report and informed Members that
the figures for the Development Management supplied in the update were only
up to February 2022; updated figures would be sent out in due course.
Planning applications were up 30% more than usual and as such, fee income
had increased, which reflected the number of applications that had been
submitted. He thanked the Development Management Team for their work
and gave details of the new head of Development Management.
Councillor Cliff Lunn, Lead Executive Member for Finance and Resources
Councillor Lunn gave an overview of his report and asked if Members had any
further questions.
The Leader of the Opposition stated that a question raised at a previous
meeting, about the spending of the P4G funding, had not yet been answered;
£1m had been spent but there was an estimated £5.4m left to spend.
Members wanted to know when the rest would be spent.
A further question was also asked about the energy rebate and how those
customers without bank accounts or access to the internet would receive the
payment.
The Executive Member explained that the accounts for the P4G were still
being finalised. There were several ongoing projects but there had been some
delays, and the scheme could continue into the 2022-23 year. If the schemes
were not finished by the end of 2022-23, the money would transfer to the new
North Yorkshire unitary authority. The total spend would be £5.5m, £2m of
which would be community investment, as well as staff costs.
Regarding the payment of the energy rebate, the team who were
administering the payments were waiting for the software to enable them to
Council - Minutes
Page
3 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

make direct debit payments. Letters would be sent to all those who would
receive the payment, including the 26% of residents who could not use direct
debit. There was no facility to pay customers by cash due to the risk of fraud,
but there weren’t many residents who did not have bank accounts. The
Council’s Customer Service Team were able to assist residents when filling in
their direct debit forms; the authority would make every effort help, including
the elderly and most vulnerable, who were at risk of scams.
The Executive Member assured Members that the matter was being taken
seriously and again informed the Council that the delays had been due to the
requirement for new software to make the payments. The issues experienced
were common to another local authority in the county. The problems had been
tested and were now resolved, with payments starting that week. Residents
who could not be paid by direct debit would be dealt with on a case-by-case
basis.
A further query was raised about the Test and Trace support payments to the
clinically vulnerable, those on furlough and people self-isolating. The
Executive Member stated that he would ask Officers and provide a written
reply.
Councillor David Buckle, Lead Executive Member for Communities and
Economic Development
Councillor Buckle summarised his report to the Council. There were no
questions from Members.
Councillor Tim Grogan, Lead Executive Member for Health and Culture
Councillor Grogan submitted his report to the Council and gave further
updates on the trial usage of hydrogenated vegetable oil as fuel for the
Council’s vehicles. The trial in November 2021 went well and saved an
average of 60 tonnes of carbon dioxide.
An illegal traveller site had been removed recently by the Police using Section
61 powers, without Council involvement.
Councillor Grogan also informed Members that he would be looking into the
state of letter boxes in the district, as many were in a poor state of repair.
Members asked about fly tipping and the use of CCTV cameras, both real and
false. Councillor Grogan responded that the Council was working closely with
the Environment Agency and the Police on the matter, with one or two leads
being followed up. He was an advocate of the use of CCTV with two currently
in use. If Members wanted them to be used in their areas, they needed to
apply to do so. The use of false cameras would need to be investigated, and if
a real camera was being used it needed to be in place for at least a few
weeks.
A report had been approved by the Executive in March 2022 for the
Council - Minutes
Page
4 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

Environmental Services contract succession strategy and re-procurement
exercise in April 2022. A cross-party task and finish group would be actively
involved over the next twelve months.
Members were concerned that the previous contract had excluded ginnels in
Sherburn and elsewhere in the district and asked that they were included in
the new contract. Councillor Grogan asked Members to contact him separately
outside the meeting about the matter.
Concerns around an abandoned skip in Tadcaster on the river gateway were
raised and it was requested that it be removed as soon as possible. Councillor
Grogan confirmed that he was aware of the issue and had updated Tadcaster
Members about this. The skip was owned by a company that had gone out of
business and specialist equipment was required to move it as it was unclear
what the contents were.
It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken that the Executive reports be
noted.
RESOLVED:
To note the Executive reports.
69

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES
Councillor Karl Arthur – Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee
Councillor Arthur commended his report to the Council. There were no
questions from Members.
Councillor Chris Pearson – Chair of the Policy Review Committee
Councillor Pearson presented his report to Council. There were no questions
from Members.
Councillor Steve Shaw-Wright – Chair of Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Pearson presented his report to Council. There were no questions
from Members.
It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken that the reports from Committees
be noted.
RESOLVED:
To note the reports from Committees.

70

MOTIONS
There were no motions.

71

GAMBLING POLICY 2022 (C/21/19)
Council - Minutes
Page
5 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

Councillor A Lee declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item as he
owned an establishment that held a gambling licence. As such he left the
room during the item’s consideration.
The Lead Executive Member for Health and Culture introduced the report
which asked the Council to adopt the proposed Gambling Policy 2022 as set
out at Appendix A of the report.
It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken that the Gambling Policy 2022 be
adopted.
RESOLVED:
That the Gambling Policy 2022 be adopted.
72

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS FOR THE 2022-23 MUNICIPAL YEAR (C/21/20)
Councillor A Lee re-joined the meeting.
The Deputy Leader introduced the report that asked Members to approve the
calendar of meetings for the 2022-23 municipal year, as outlined at Appendix
A to the report.
Members noted that there was a minor amendment; Policy Review Committee
would now be meeting on 12 July 2022, and Council on 19 July 2022.
Some Members were disappointed that a few meeting dates were amended
regularly and suggested that District Council meetings be planned in
conjunction with County Council meetings.
It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken to approve the calendar of
meetings for the 2022-23 municipal year, as outlined at Appendix A.
RESOLVED:
To approve the calendar of meetings for the 2022-23
municipal year.

73

REPORTING OF URGENT DECISION: TADCASTER BUSINESS FLOOD
GRANT SCHEME
The Chief Executive presented the report which set out the reasons for the
urgent decision taken, by the Chief Executive, to vire Programme for Growth
budget to deliver flood recovery fund grants through a scheme to provide
financial assistance to Tadcaster town centre businesses suffering hardship
following the flooding caused by Storm Franklin in February 2022.
Tadcaster Ward Members thanked the Council for the funding which would
benefit several businesses, some of which were unable to acquire insurance
for flooding. There were some concerns that the turnover of the business
should be over £100k to qualify for the funding, for which smaller businesses
Council - Minutes
Page
6 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

could be excluded. The Chief Executive confirmed that the grant was for small
businesses and there could be some flexibility.
Members thanked Officers for their work on the scheme, and in particular
those present during the flooding who helped as soon as possible.
Following a query about assistance for private householders, Members were
informed that a link on the Council’s website had gone live that day which set
out how residents could obtain the appropriate support.
Some minor errors in the financial details of the report were raised. Members
asked that if there were similar flooding in other areas of the district the same
approach would be taken. The Chief Executive explained that Tadcaster was
a one-off due to the promised £12m flood alleviation scheme not being
forthcoming.
The deadline for applications was by the end of April 2022; a press release
would be published shortly to advertise this. Members asked if there would be
a way to write directly to businesses to inform them about the scheme; the
Chief Executive explained that as Two Ridings Community Foundation were
administering the scheme on behalf of the Council, it would need to be raised
with them. The matter would be taken up by Officers and further details sent to
the Tadcaster Ward Members.
It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken to agree the recommendations
as set out in the report.
RESOLVED:
To note the urgent decision of the Chief Executive:

74

1.

that £100,000 unallocated Programme for Growth
funding and £22,500 of ‘Growing Enterprise’
Programme for Growth Funding be vired to establish
a Tadcaster Business Flood Grant Scheme;

2.

that authority be delegated to the Director of
Corporate Services and Commissioning to enter into
an agreement with an external provider to deliver the
grant scheme, subject to appropriate conditions.

URGENT ITEM - RECALCULATION OF POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY
OF THE COUNCIL AND SUBSEQUENT CHANGES TO THE MEMBERSHIP
OF COMMITTEES FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE 2021-22 MUNICIPAL
YEAR
The Deputy Leader introduced the report which provided details of the
recalculation of political proportionality of the Council following recent changes
to political groups, and the subsequent amendments to the number of places
on, and membership of, the Council’s committees for the remainder of the
2021-22 municipal year.
Council - Minutes
Page
7 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

Members noted that at point 1.4 of the report there was an error; Councillor
Charles Richardson was still a member of the Planning Committee.
It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken that Councillor Mark Topping be
appointed as Chair of the Planning Committee.
RESOLVED:
1. To note the changes to the membership of political
groups on the Council and the subsequent recalculation
of political proportionality on the Council’s Committees.
2. To agree, as a result of these changes, the places on the
Planning Committee for the remainder of the 2021-22
municipal year.
3. That the position of Chairman of the Planning Committee
be given to Councillor Mark Topping.
75

URGENT ACTION
There were no urgent actions to report.
The meeting closed at 7.01 pm.

Council - Minutes
Page
8 2022
Tuesday,
19 April

Agenda Item 7

Report Reference Number: C/22/1
_________
_____________________________________________________
To:
Council
Date:
17 May 2022
Author:
Alison Hartley, Solicitor to the Council
Lead Officer:
Janet Waggott, Chief Executive
Executive Member
Councillor Mark Crane, Leader of the Council
_____________
_________________________________________________
Title: The Leader’s Report to Council on the Discharge of Executive Functions
Summary:
Under the terms of the Constitution the Leader of Council must present a report to
the Annual Meeting of Council regarding the way in which executive functions are to
be discharged in the forthcoming year.
This report satisfies that requirement and sets out


The names of Councillors appointed to the Executive and their portfolios



The terms of reference of appointments to and governance of any Executive
Committees



The nature and extent of any delegation of an executive function to an
individual member of Executive



The nature and extent of any delegation of an executive function to officers



The nature and extent of any delegation of executive functions to community
engagement forums, other authorities or joint arrangements including the
names of Executive Members appointed under such arrangements

The Leader may subsequently change the arrangements made in this report but on
doing so must give written notice to the Chief Executive and to the person, body or
committee concerned. The Chief Executive will then make arrangements to report
the changes to the next ordinary meeting of Council.
Recommendation:
To receive and note the Leader’s Report to Council on the discharge of
Executive Functions.

Page 9

Reasons for recommendation
To meet the obligations set out in the Executive Procedure Rules within the
Council’s constitution.
1.

Role and Composition of the Executive
The Executive Procedure Rules require that the Leader of the Council
reports on the discharge of executive functions for the year ahead. For 202223 the arrangements shall be as follows:
a. Members of the Executive


Councillor Mark Crane – Leader of the Council and Lead Executive
Member for Housing, Leisure, Strategic Matters, External Relations and
Partnerships



Councillor Richard Musgrave – Deputy Leader of the Council and Lead
Executive Member for Place Shaping



Councillor Cliff Lunn – Lead Executive Member for Finance and
Resources



Councillor David Buckle - Lead Executive Member for Communities and
Economic Development



Councillor Tim Grogan - Lead Executive Member for Health and Culture

b. Executive Portfolios
The Leader
Main Role
To exercise the Executive Leader powers vested in the Leader in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000 as amended by section 62 of the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.
To provide visible political leadership in relation to citizens, stakeholders and
partners in the overall co-ordination of Council policies, strategies and
service delivery.
To lead on leisure, the development of external relations and local, regional,
national and European policy and strategic partnerships.
Main Duties and Responsibilities
i.

To Chair the Executive.

ii.

To represent and act as an ambassador for the Authority and to lead
in developing strategic partnerships with agencies, citizens and

Page 10

stakeholders in relation to the delivery of strategic objectives in the
Corporate Plan and the provision of services to citizens.
iii.

To have overall responsibility for:
(a)

Strategic Policy and Budget issues

(b)

Development, monitoring and implementation of the Policy
Framework

(c)

Communicating the Council’s values, vision and objectives to
councillors, staff and to citizens, partners and stakeholders

(d)

The York, North Yorkshire and East Riding and Leeds City
Region Local Enterprise Partnerships and Combined Authority.

iv.

To lead on external communications for the Council.

iv.

To lead on major projects.

v.

To take up corporate membership of any appropriate body or
organisation whose objectives are considered to be beneficial to the
pursuit of the Authority’s own activities.

vi.

To monitor the performance of the Council including
implementation of the Corporate Plan and other major plans by:
(a)

Setting strategic performance targets

(b)

Ensuring corporate goals and milestones are met

(c)

Developing new policies and strategies

the

vii.

To ensure that systems exist to appraise the performance of senior
managers.

viii.

To determine the ways in which the Council spends the funds
allocated to the Programme for Growth

ix.

Lead political responsibility for leisure and corporate support functions
such as democratic services, HR, communications and legal services

x.

Lead political responsibility for leisure services

xi.

Lead political responsibility for public and private sector housing
including representation of the Council in North Yorkshire and Leeds
City Region housing strategies.

Deputy Leader and Place Shaping Portfolio
Overall responsibility for the promotion, development and delivery of land use
and planning activities, as an integral part of making Selby a great place to
live in accordance with the Corporate Plan.

Page 11

Representing the Council on regional groups relating to land use planning,
such as duty to co-operate groups.
Responsibility for overseeing relationships with outside bodies which do not
fall within any other portfolio (such as Internal Drainage Boards)
Main Duties and Responsibilities
i.

To chair Executive Meetings when the Leader is not present

ii.

To deputise for the Leader at Leeds City region, LEP and Combined
Authority meetings as necessary.

iii.

To lead on the development, promotion and delivery of policies and
strategies in connection with Land Use Planning and Development.

iv.

To lead on the Housing Delivery Programme Board to give strategic
oversight and direction to the implementation of the Council’s Housing
Delivery Plan

Finance and Resources Portfolio
Overall Responsibility for co-ordinating and developing the responsibilities
and activities of the Council in relation to the effective and efficient use of its
resources, monitoring the budget, delivering value for money and the savings
plan, debt control, procurement, assets, council tax, revenues and benefits
as an integral part of delivering great value in accordance with the Corporate
Plan.
Main Duties and Responsibilities
i.

To lead on the provision of guidance for the capital and revenue
budgetary priorities of the Council together with the implementation of
strategic budget monitoring policies which will ensure the proper
administration of the financial affairs of the Council.

ii.

Lead political responsibility for audit and risk management.

iii.

Lead political responsibility for debt control, procurement, council tax,
revenues and benefits, property and asset management.

Communities and Economic Development Portfolio
Overall Responsibility for communities and economic development as an
integral part of making Selby a great place to do business and to make a
difference, in accordance with the Corporate Plan.
Main Duties and Responsibilities
i.

Lead political responsibility for inward investment,
development and business partnerships such as STEP

Page 12

economic

ii.

Lead political responsibility for Community Engagement Forums,
funding and support of local community and voluntary sector
organisations and Community Safety.

iii.

Lead political responsibility for the access to services agenda and
embedding customer focus within services.

iv.

Lead political responsibility for Equality and Diversity.

Health and Culture Portfolio
Overall responsibility for public and private sector housing, culture and health
as an integral part of making Selby a great place to live in accordance with
the Corporate Plan.
Main Duties and Responsibilities
i.

To lead on the development promotion and delivery of polices and
strategies in connection with Culture, Tourism and events.

ii.

To promote and develop effective partnership working arrangements
with public, private and voluntary stakeholders to promote the District
as a centre of cultural development and as an attractive tourist
destination.

iii.

Lead political responsibility for the development and delivery of
policies and strategies in connection with the provision of effective and
efficient environment services. This includes street scene services,
waste collection and disposal, parks and other public spaces,
enforcement and environmental health.

iv.

Lead political responsibility for health including environmental health
and licensing functions

c. Executive Committees
No Executive Committees are to be established.
d. Executive Delegations
For 2021/22 the Leader continues to reserve individual decision-making
powers to himself in respect of:
(i)

Any executive decisions (including key decisions), in a situation where
the matter is so urgent that it does not allow time for a report to the
Executive.

(ii)

the allocation of funds within the Programme for Growth.

It is not expected that these individual decision-making powers will be
exercised on a regular basis, but the reservation of powers will allow the
Council to respond quickly to emerging projects and priorities through

Page 13

decision making and by allocating funding. Key decisions will be taken in
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules.
An individual delegation is given to the Lead Executive Member for Finance
and Resources. This delegation is to approve virements above the limits
delegated to officers in the financial procedure rules up to a maximum of £75
000.
Individual decisions made by the Leader and the Lead Executive Member for
Finance and Resources will be recorded and published in line with the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012.
From time-to-time specific delegations may be made to other Lead Executive
Members to deal with matters specified at the time.
e. Executive Delegations to Officers
The full Scheme of Executive Delegations to Officers is contained in Part 3 of
the Council’s Constitution. This has been updated following the
organisational review.
f. Executive Delegations to Joint Committees
The Council undertakes the following functions by way of Joint Committees
and the Executive Councillors appointed to serve under those arrangements
are set out below:
Building Control (North Yorkshire Building Control Partnership) – Councillor
Cliff Lunn
The Leeds City Region Partnership Committee, an Advisory Committee of
the West Yorkshire Combined Authority whose terms of reference are to act
as a consultative forum for matters referred to it by the WYCA and advise the
WYCA in relation to:
i)
ii)
iii)

its accountable body functions
ii) duty to co-operate matters
iii) appointments to the Leeds City Region LEP.

The WYCA has appointed the Leader of Selby District Council to the LCR
Partnership Committee. The Leader appoints the Deputy Leader as named
substitute and gives the Chief Executive and the Director of Regeneration
and Place concurrent delegated authority to approve, in consultation with the
Leader, any matter including funding agreements necessary to give effect to
any resolution of the WYCA in respect of LEP funding arrangements for the
Selby District.

Page 14

g. Executive Delegations to other Authorities
Breathing Space
Breathing Space is a regional mortgage assistance loan scheme, operated
by Wakefield Metropolitan District Council (Wakefield Council), on behalf of
local authorities across the Yorkshire and Humber region, to enable them to
offer loans to help homeowners in the District experiencing difficulties with
their mortgage and/or secured loan payments.
To enable Wakefield Council to act as the Accountable Body for the scheme
and to act as administrative body and banker, formal approval is given to
allow Wakefield to discharge these functions on behalf of Selby District
Council under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 and Local
Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) (England)
Regulations 2000, in accordance with the Council’s well-being powers under
Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000. The Leader delegates to the
Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning the power to approve
amendments to the delegation to cover any changes to the scheme which do
not affect its overall purpose and intent.
Homeless Reviews
Under s202 of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended by s9 of the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017) the Council (as Housing Authority) is
required to carry out reviews of decisions on eligibility and priority need in
homelessness cases. This is a highly specialised area of law and as such it
is important that the reviewing officer has a detailed knowledge and
understanding of the relevant statutory provisions and caselaw. Under the
Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994 and the Local Authorities
(Contracting Out of Allocation of Housing and Homelessness Functions)
Order 1996, the Council can ask that the reviews be undertaken by another
person or someone employed by another. This provision enables the Council
to buy in the relevant expertise as and when required.
Pursuant to that provision the Leader delegates the power to carry out a
review under s202 Housing Act 1996 (and ancillary functions) to Melanie
Cant LLB (Hons) CIHM, Homelessness Review Officer and to similarly
specialised officers from partner North Yorkshire Local Authorities. The
Leader delegates to the Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning
the power to approve amendments to the delegation to cover any changes to
the arrangements which do not affect the overall purpose and intent.
Energy Efficiency
Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 and Local
Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) (England)
Regulations 2012, the executive function of administering Energy Repayment
Loans and Home Appreciation Loans, including deciding whether to award
the loan and making the loan payments, as approved under Selby District
Council’s Private Sector Housing Policy in accordance with the Regulatory
Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002, be

Page 15

discharged on Selby District Council’s behalf by the Executive of Sheffield
City Council.
e)

Urgent Decisions

Urgent decisions taken by the Leader of the Council in 2021-22 are attached
at Appendix A. This includes decisions during Covid.
f)

Legal/Financial Controls and other Policy matters

None arising from this report.
4.

Background Documents
None.

5.

Appendices
Appendix A – Urgent decisions (Key and Non-Key) taken by the Leader of
the Council in 2021-22
Contact Details:
Alison Hartley
Solicitor to the Council
ahartley@selby.gov.uk

Page 16

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Report/Decision Title

Date Decision
Made

Additional Restrictions 14-May-21
Grant (ARG) Scheme
amendment, for
Businesses affected by
local and national
lockdowns

Key?

Decision

Made by

Yes

That:

Leader of the Council

(i) The Additional Restrictions Grant revised
scheme attached at Appendix A to the
Report is approved; and

Page 17

(ii) That delegated authority is given to the
Head of Operational Services to administer
the scheme and the Chief Finance Officer is
authorised to make technical scheme
amendments.
Revision to
Discretionary Discount
Scheme Relief for
businesses affected by
Covid 19

06-Jul-21

Yes

That:
(i) The amended Discretionary Rates Relief
Policy 2021/22, attached at Appendix A to
the Report is approved.
(ii) That delegated authority is given to the
Head of Operational Services to administer
the approved Scheme.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Afghan Locally
Employed Staff (LES)
Relocation Scheme

24-Jun-21

Yes

That as the matter is urgent, and the
decision cannot await a full meeting of the
Executive due to the need to put in place
arrangements for Afghan LES arrivals in
July 2021 the Leader agrees:
i. to participate in the Afghan LES
Relocation Scheme, as requested by the
Home Office and in partnership with NYCC;
ii. that the Council’s commitment to this
scheme shall be in the region of 10 people
(2 families);

Page 18

iii. to give authority to enter into a new
agreement with North Yorkshire County
Council and the other relevant District
Council’s concerning for this scheme; and
iv. to note that the key role of the Council
within this scheme shall be facilitating the
sourcing of suitable accommodation. Costs
associated with this shall be paid for by
Central Government Grant funding. This is
administered by North Yorkshire County
Council. The Director of Corporate Services
and Commissioning is authorised to apply
for and receive the grant.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Additional Restrictions
Grant (ARG) Scheme
update

19-Jul-21

Yes

That as the matter is urgent, and the
decision cannot await a full meeting of the
Executive due to the need to put in place
arrangements as part of the Covid-19
response, the Leader agrees that:
(i) The proposed businesses set out at
paragraph 3.4 of the attached report are
supported with a further phase 3 of
business grants using the additional
funding received; and

Page 19

(ii) That delegated authority is given to the
Head of Operational Services to administer
the scheme and the Chief Finance Officer is
authorised to make technical scheme
amendments.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Amendment to
Executive Meeting
Dates 2021-22

28-Oct-21

Yes

To amend the following Executive meeting
dates in the 2021-22 municipal year:
• December 2021 – move to 2 December
2021 from 9 December 2021;
• February 2022 – move to 3 February 2022
from 10 February 2022; and
• March 2022 – move to 3 March 2022 from
10 March 2022.

Leader of the Council

Page 20

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Community
22-Dec-21
Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) and Health Report
(Sherburn in Elmet)

Yes

Page 21

That the Executive recommend that the
Leader using reserved urgency power
delegates authority to the Director of
Economic Regeneration and Place, in
consultation with the Lead Executive
Member for Place Shaping and the S151
Officer, to enter into the appropriate legal
agreements to pass £750,000 of the
Community Infrastructure Levy funds to
either the Clinical Commissioning Group or
the Beech Grove GP Practice Partnership
Dr Andrew Peel, Dr Catriona Osman, Dr
Jocelyn Patel, Dr Emma White and Dr
Susan Jones to part fund an extension of
Beech Grove Medical Centre in Sherburn in
Elmet to secure provision of the health
infrastructure scheme, subject to necessary
due diligence (including an assessment of
funding options) and subject to the Director
being satisfied that the provision of funds
does not breach the subsidy control laws.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Additional Restrictions
Grant (ARG) Scheme
(Omicron) phase of
funding

11-Feb-22

Yes

That as the matter is urgent, and the
decision cannot await a full meeting of the
Executive due to the need to put in place
arrangements as part of the Covid-19
response, the Leader agrees that:
(i) the amended Additional Restrictions
Grant (ARG) scheme, attached at Appendix
A to the Report is approved; and

Page 22

(ii) that delegated authority be given to the
Head of Business Development and
Improvement to administer the scheme,
and the Chief Finance Officer is authorised
to make technical scheme amendments.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22

Page 23

CARF Relief Scheme,
RHL Scheme, TRL
Scheme

14-Feb-22

Yes

That the decision is urgent and cannot
await a full meeting of the Executive due to
the need to put in place arrangements as
part of the ongoing Covid-19 response, and
that the policy documents for the 3
schemes be approved for insertion into the
councils Discretionary Rates Relief Policy,
attached at Appendix A to the report.

Leader of the Council

Planning Resource

04-Mar-22

Yes

That as the matter is urgent, and the
Leader of the Council
decision cannot await a full meeting of the
Executive due to the need to put in place
arrangements to secure the necessary
capacity within the planning service, the
Leader agrees that:
£363k income generated from Planning
Applications in 21/22 is used to fund current
agency staff in 22/23 for up to 12 months to
deal with the peak in workload. In addition,
that the income highlighted is also used to
backfill an existing post for 6 months to
allow the officer in question to act up into
the Planning Development Manager Post.

Appendix A - Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Council Tax Rebate
Schemes 2022-23

27-Apr-22

Yes

The Leader agreed that:
(i) that the Council Tax Rebate Mandatory
Scheme 2022-23, attached at Appendix A
to the Report is approved;
(ii) that the Council Tax Rebate
Discretionary Scheme 2022-23, attached at
Appendix B to the Report is approved;

Page 24

(iii) that delegated authority is given to the
Head of Business Development and
Improvement to administer the scheme and
the Chief Finance Officer is authorised to
make technical scheme amendments; and
(iv) that the overspend risk of up to £6,250
as detailed in the report be funded from the
Covid-19 CTS Hardship Fund should it be
required.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A – Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22

Page 25

Report/Decision
Title

Date
Decision
Made

Key?

Decision

Made by

Extension of
existing Better
Together
Collaboration
Service Level
Agreement - Legal
Services with North
Yorkshire County
Council until 31
December 2021

24-Jun-21

No

To extend the existing Better Together
Collaboration Service Level Agreement - Legal
Services, with North Yorkshire County Council,
(which ends on 30th June 2021) until 31st
December 2021.

Leader of the Council

Retained Right to
Buy Receipts –
Revised Agreement
Discretionary
Housing Payments
Funding

19-Aug-21

No

That the Council renew the agreement for the
retention of additional right to buy receipts.

Leader of the Council

12-Oct-21

No

The Leader agreed that an amount of £30,000 be
allocated from the COVID-19 CTS Hardship
Fund.

Leader of the Council

Planning Resource

02-Dec-21

No

The Leader agreed that a virement of £47k from
Planning Income to Planning Agency Costs be
approved.

Leader of the Council

Appendix A – Leader’s Urgent Decisions 2021-22
Omicron Hospitality
and Leisure Grant

06-Jan-22

No

That as the matter is urgent, and the decision
Leader of the Council
cannot await a full meeting of the Executive due
to the need to put in place arrangements as part
of the Covid-19 response, the Leader agrees that:
(i) the Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant
Scheme, attached at Appendix A to the Report be
approved; and

Page 26

(ii) that delegated authority be given to the Head
of Business Development and Improvement to
administer the schemes, and that the Chief
Finance Officer be authorised to make technical
scheme amendments.

Agenda Item 8

Report Reference Number: C/22/2
____________________ ___________________________

______

_________

To:
Council
Date:
19 April 2022
Author:
Victoria Foreman, Democratic Services Officer
Lead Officer:
Janet Waggott, Chief Executive
Executive Member:
Councillor Mark Crane, Leader of the Council
_________________________________________
___ __________________
Title: Recalculation of Political Proportionality of the Council and the
Appointment of Councillors to Committees for the 2022-23 Municipal Year
Summary:
This report provides details of the recalculation of political proportionality of the Council
following recent changes to a political group, and the group nominations for the
appointment of Councillors to Committees, as outlined in Appendix A (to follow) for the
2022-23 municipal year.
Recommendations:
1. To note the changes to the membership of political groups on the Council
and the subsequent recalculation of political proportionality on the
Council’s Committees.
2. To approve the group nominations for the appointment of Councillors to
Committees as outlined at Appendix A (to follow) for the 2022-23
municipal year.
Reasons for recommendation
To meet legislative requirements and to enable the proper functioning of the Council in
the 2022-23 municipal year.
The Council are encouraged to have sight of any changes to political balance for
transparency.

Page 27

1.

The Report
Recalculation of Political Proportionality

1.1

The political balance of the Council was last confirmed at its meeting held on 19
April 2022, following the changes to political group membership.
At that meeting, the balance was:
Conservatives: 18
Labour: 8
Independent Group: 4
Unaligned: 1

1.2

The political balance has been altered to the following:
Conservatives: 17
Labour: 8
Independent Group: 4
Unaligned: 2

1.3

The changes to the membership of groups on the Council requires the
recalculation of political proportionality for committee places. As a result of this
change the Licensing Committee now has one seat for an unaligned member.

1.4

The changes to the seats are set out below:
Licensing Committee allocation of seats (following the recalculation)
Conservative: 6
Labour: 3
Independents and Yorkshire Party: 1
Unaligned: 1
Total seats on Licensing Committee: 11
Planning Committee allocation of seats (following the recalculation)
Conservative: 5
Labour: 2
Independents and Yorkshire Party: 1
Unaligned: 1
Total seats on Planning Committee: 9

1.5

Committee places on the Scrutiny, Audit and Governance and Policy Review
Committees will stay the same.

Page 28

Appointment of Councillors to Committees for 2022-23
1.6

Each year Annual Council receives Group Leaders’ nominations for
appointments to Chairs and Vice Chairs and for the membership and
substitutes for Council committees. The list of nominations for the Chairs, Vice
Chairs and members and substitutes for Council committees for 2022-23 are
attached at Appendix A (to follow).

2.

Alternative Options Considered
None - appointments to Council Committees are required to ensure Council
business can be conducted legally.

3.

Implications

3.1

Legal Implications
Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 places a duty on the
Council to allocate seats on Ordinary Committees of the Council between the
political groups in accordance with the following principles:
a) That not all the seats on the body to which appointments are being made
are allocated to the same political group;
b) That the majority of seats on each committee are allocated to a particular
political group if the number of persons belonging to that group is a majority
of the authority’s membership;
c) That subject to (a) and (b), when allocating seats to a political group, the
total number of their seats across all the ordinary committees of the Council,
must reflect their proportion of the authority’s membership; and
d) Subject to (a) to (c), that the number of seats on each committee is as far as
possible in proportion to the group’s membership of the authority.

3.2

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires that, once the Council
has determined the allocation of committee places between the political groups,
the Council must then appoint the nominees of the political groups to the
committees.

3.3

For the purpose of this process there are three political groups making up the
Council: the Conservative Group, the Labour Group, the Independents and
Yorkshire Party Group and two unaligned members. In order to meet the
requirements of Section 15(c) the unaligned members are entitled to two seats.
In order to meet the requirements of Section 15(b) and ensure that the majority
party has the majority on each committee it is proposed those places be on
Planning Committee and Licensing Committee. A group consists of two or more
members of Council who have indicated that they wish to be treated as a group.
Political groups are entitled to their proportion of seats and once their
entitlement has been reached, any remaining seats may be filled by Councillors
not belonging to a political group.

Page 29

3.2

Financial Implications
Councillors are entitled to claim for travel expenses incurred when attending
meetings physically, but there are no direct financial implications related to the
change in political balance. The cost of servicing Committees will be met
through the existing budgets.

4.

Conclusion
That the Council note the changes to the membership of political groups on the
Council and the subsequent recalculation of political proportionality and
approve the group nominations for the appointment of Councillors to
Committees for the 2022-23 municipal year.

5.

Background Documents
None.

6.

Appendices
Appendix A - Proposed Membership of Council Committees for 2022-23 (to
follow)
Contact Details:
Victoria Foreman
Democratic Services Officer
vforeman@selby.gov.uk

Page 30

Agenda Item 9

Report Reference Number: C/22/3
____________
__________________________________________________
To:
Council
Date:
17 May 2022
Author:
Alison Hartley, Solicitor to the Council
Lead Officer:
Janet Waggott, Chief Executive
Executive Member
Councillor Mark Crane, Leader of the Council
____________________________________________________
__________
Title: Council Appointments to Outside Bodies 2022-23
Summary:
This report informs Council of the proposed representatives for 2022-23 on Outside
Bodies which it appoints and seeks approval of the proposals.
Recommendations:
i)

That Council make its appointments to outside bodies for the 2022-23
municipal year.

ii)

To authorise those appointed to act on behalf of the Council in
accordance with the legal and constitutional requirements of both the
Council and the outside body.

Reasons for recommendation
To ensure the Council is represented on Outside Bodies as necessary in 2022-23.
1.

The Report

1.1

Under Executive arrangements, the responsibility for appointing
representatives on Outside Bodies is split between the Executive and the
Council. This report asks Council to consider those appointments within its
remit.

1.2

The proposals for Council appointments to Outside Bodies is attached at
Appendix A and Council is asked to consider the list and confirm its
appointments for 2022-23 or make any changes as appropriate.

Page 31

1.3

There are currently the following vacancies on the Outside Bodies list:



National Association of Councillors (National and Northern Branch)
Citizens Advice Bureau – Selby

1.4

To ensure the Council is kept informed and its interests are represented, it is
essential that representatives attend all outside body meetings they have
been allocated.

2.

Alternative Options Considered
None – appointments to Outside Bodies are essential to ensure the Council is
adequately represented.

3.

Implications

3.1

Legal Implications
None within the context of the report.

3.2

Financial Implications
Councillors and other Council representatives are entitled to claim for travel
expenses incurred when attending meetings physically.

4.

Conclusion
That the Council should make its appointments to Outside Bodies for 202223.

5.

Background Documents
None.

6.

Appendices
Appendix A – Proposed Council Appointments to Outside Bodies 2022-23
Contact Details:
Alison Hartley
Solicitor to the Council
ahartley@selby.gov.uk

Page 32

APPENDIX A
Selby District Council
Council Appointments on Outside Bodies 2022-23
OUTSIDE BODY

PLACES

REPRESENTATIVE

Page 33

National Association of Councillors
(National and Northern Branch)

1

Vacancy

NYCC Scrutiny of Health Panel

1

Cllr Jennifer Shaw-Wright

Association of Voluntary Services for Selby

1

Cllr Steph Duckett

Citizens Advice Bureau – Selby

1

Vacancy

Drax Power Station Consultative Committee

1

Cllr I Chilvers

Eggborough Power Station Consultative Committee

1

Cllr Mary McCartney

Selby and District Rail Users Group

1

Cllr D Buckle

North Yorkshire Older Peoples’ Partnership Board

1

Cllr J Duggan

This page is intentionally left blank

